
November 15, 2023 Regular Meeting of the KYMEA
Board of Directors

11/15/2023

Board Room at 10 AM

1700 Eastpoint Pkwy Suite 220

Louisville, 40223

This meeting will also be available as a TEAMS video meeting (contact mhixon@kymea.org for
attendee information).



1. Attendance  Michelle Hixon

2. Call to Order  Josh Callihan

AA. . Meeting OpeningMeeting Opening  

BB. . Previous Meeting Minutes of the KYMEA Board of DirectorsPrevious Meeting Minutes of the KYMEA Board of Directors Approval of Last
Month's Meeting
Minutes

Josh Callihan

1. Budget Committee Report  

DD. . Committee ReportsCommittee Reports
None Expected

 

1. CEO  Doug Buresh

2. Market Report  Rob Leesman

3. Member Communications  Michelle Hixon

EE. . Administration ReportsAdministration Reports  

1. FY 2024 Budget & Rates Timeline  Doug Buresh

2. FY2025 Operating Budget
Action is expected at the December Board Meeting.

 Heather
Overby

3. Winter Preparation  Rob Leesman

4. Benham & Berea Transmission Agreements
Action expected at December's board meeting.

 Doug Buresh

FF. . Discussion TopicsDiscussion Topics  

GG. . Action ItemsAction Items  

JJ. . Closed SessionClosed Session Motion to enter into
closed session.

Charlie
Musson

3. Guest Introductions  Josh Callihan

CC. . Financial ReportsFinancial Reports
The October Financial Reports will be presented in December.

 Heather
Overby

2. AR Project Committee Report  

1. Investment Bank Selection Motion to select an
investment bank.

Heather
Overby

HH. . Public CommentsPublic Comments
This is an opportunity for members of the public to provide input to the
KYMEA Board and is limited to 5 minutes per speaker.

 Josh Callihan

II. . Upcoming Meetings and Other BusinessUpcoming Meetings and Other Business
The next board meeting will be held on December 13th at 10 am in
KYMEA's board room.

 Michelle Hixon

KK. . Action Expected Related to Matters Discussed in Closed SessionAction Expected Related to Matters Discussed in Closed Session  Josh Callihan

Meeting Book - November 15, 2023 Regular Meeting of the KYMEA Board of DirectorsMeeting Book - November 15, 2023 Regular Meeting of the KYMEA Board of Directors

AgendaAgenda

Page 2 of 77



 Josh CallihanLL. . AdjournmentAdjournment

Page 3 of 77



 

 

Minutes for Meeting Book - October 26, 2023 Regu... | 1 

 

Minutes for Meeting Book - October 26, 2023, Regular Meeting of the 

KYMEA Board of Directors 

10/26/2023 | 10:00 AM  

Board Room at 10 AM 

Attendees (9) 

Josh Callihan; Ron Herd; Kevin Howard; Philip King; Tim Lyons; Chris Melton; Jamie Miller; 

Gary Zheng; Jack Snyder 

Additional attendees were Doug Buresh, Rob Leesman, Michelle Hixon, Molly Roesler, 

Charlie Musson, Fred Haddad, Brad Kushner, Brad Porter, Pat Pace, Travis McCullar, David 

Denton, Hance Price, Anna Marie Pavlik Rosen, and Jamie Harkins. 

Meeting Opening 

1. Attendance: A quorum was noted. 

2. Call to Order  

3. Guest Introductions: No guests were introduced. 

Previous Meeting Minutes of the KYMEA Board of Directors 

ACTION: Motion to approve the October 19, 2023, Special Board Meeting minutes was 

made by Chris Melton and seconded by Ron Herd. The motion passed.   

 

Financial Reports 

ACTION: Motion to approve the September financial reports was made by Tim Lyons 

and seconded by Mayor King. The motion passed.  

 

Committee Reports 

1.   Budget Committee Report: Chris Melton gave an update on the budget committee and 

explained that the FY2025 budget will be presented to the board next month. 

 

Administration Reports 

1.   CEO Report: Doug Buresh updated the group on the following. 

Page 4 of 77



 

 

Minutes for Meeting Book - October 26, 2023 Regu... | 2 

            a. RTO Capacity Assessment 

            b. IRP2023 Timeline 

2.   Market Report: Rob Leesman discussed the previous month's markets in relation to 

KYMEA. 

3.   Member Communications: The board was updated on upcoming events and member 

activities. 

Discussion Topics  

1.   FY 2025 Budget & Rates Timeline 

2.   State of Power Supply: Presented by Brad Kushner and Fred Haddad 

Action Items 

1.   Establish RICE Project Committee 

ACTION: Motion to adopt the presented resolution to establish the RICE Project 

Committee was made by Chris Melton and seconded by Ron Herd. The motion 

passed.  

 

Josh Callihan  Aye 

Ron Herd  Aye 

Kevin Howard Aye 

Mayor King  Aye 

Tim Lyons   Aye 

Chris Melton  Aye 

Jamie Miller  Aye 

Gary Zheng  No 

Butch Hackney Aye 

 

 

Public Comments 

No public comments were made.  

Upcoming Meetings and Other Business 

The next board meeting will be held on November 15th at 10 a.m. in KYMEA's board room. 

Closed Session 

There was no need for a closed session. 

Page 5 of 77



 

 

Minutes for Meeting Book - October 26, 2023 Regu... | 3 

Action Expected Related to Matters Discussed in Closed Session 

No additional action was taken. 

Adjournment  

ACTION: Motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Chris Melton and seconded by 

Mayor King. The motion passed, and the meeting was adjourned.  

 

 

 

 

X

Chairperson

   

X

Secre ta ry

Page 6 of 77



KYMEA President & CEO Report
Doug Buresh

November 15, 2023
11/10/2023 www.KYMEA.org 1
KYMEA_Board_Presentation_November_2023_CEO_11-15-2023.pptx Page 7 of 77



AGENDA

• LG&E/KU Resource Plan – PSC Order
• IRP2023 Timeline

11/10/2023 www.KYMEA.org 2
Page 8 of 77



LG&E/KU Resource Plan Request

11/10/2023 www.KYMEA.org 3

LG&E/KU Requested KU PSC Order

Year Type Retirements Nameplate Summer Winter Nameplate Summer Winter

2024 Coal Mill Creek 1 300 300 300 300 300 300

2025 CT Haefling 1 14 12 14 14 12 14

2025 CT Haefling 2 14 12 14 14 12 14

2025 CT Paddy's Run 12 28 23 28 28 23 28

2027 Coal Mill Creek 2 297 297 297 297 297 297

2028 Coal Brown 3 416 412 416 0 0 0

2028 Coal Ghent 2 486 485 486 0 0 0

TOTAL 1,555 1,541 1,555 653 644 653

Year Type Additions Nameplate Summer Winter Nameplate Summer Winter

2027 NGCC Mill Creek 5 640 621 640 640 621 640

2028 NGCC Brown 12 640 621 640 0 0 0

2026 Battery Brown BESS 125 119 119 125 119 119

2026 Solar Mercer County 120 94 0 120 94 0

2027 Solar Marion County 120 94 0 120 94 0

TBD Solar Grays Branch 138 108 0 138 108 0

TBD Solar Nacke Pike 280 220 0 280 220 0

TBD Solar Song Sparrow 104 82 0 104 82 0

TBD Solar Gage Solar 115 90 0 115 90 0

TOTAL 2,282 2,049 1,399 1,642 1,428 759

NET CHANGE 727 508 -156 989 784 106

Page 9 of 77



LG&E/KU Resource Plan – PSC Approved

11/10/2023 www.KYMEA.org 4

LG&E/KU Requested KU PSC Order

Year Type Retirements Nameplate Summer Winter Nameplate Summer Winter

2024 Coal Mill Creek 1 300 300 300 300 300 300

2025 CT Haefling 1 14 12 14 14 12 14

2025 CT Haefling 2 14 12 14 14 12 14

2025 CT Paddy's Run 12 28 23 28 28 23 28

2027 Coal Mill Creek 2 297 297 297 297 297 297

2028 Coal Brown 3 416 412 416 0 0 0

2028 Coal Ghent 2 486 485 486 0 0 0

TOTAL 1,555 1,541 1,555 653 644 653

Year Type Additions Nameplate Summer Winter Nameplate Summer Winter

2027 NGCC Mill Creek 5 640 621 640 640 621 640

2028 NGCC Brown 12 640 621 640 0 0 0

2026 Battery Brown BESS 125 119 119 125 119 119

2026 Solar Mercer County 120 94 0 120 94 0

2027 Solar Marion County 120 94 0 120 94 0

TBD Solar Grays Branch 138 108 0 138 108 0

TBD Solar Nacke Pike 280 220 0 280 220 0

TBD Solar Song Sparrow 104 82 0 104 82 0

TBD Solar Gage Solar 115 90 0 115 90 0

TOTAL 2,282 2,049 1,399 1,642 1,428 759

NET CHANGE 727 508 -156 989 784 106

Page 10 of 77



PSC – Retirements and Brown NGCC

11/10/2023 www.KYMEA.org 5
Page 11 of 77



11/10/2023 www.KYMEA.org 6

EPA Good Neighbor Plan

Page 12 of 77



EPA Good Neighbor Plan

11/10/2023 www.KYMEA.org 7
Page 13 of 77



EPA Good Neighbor Plan

11/10/2023 www.KYMEA.org 8
Page 14 of 77



EPA Good Neighbor Plan

11/10/2023 www.KYMEA.org 9
Page 15 of 77



PSC – RTO Membership

11/10/2023 www.KYMEA.org 10
Page 16 of 77



PSC – Closing Remarks

11/10/2023 www.KYMEA.org 11
Page 17 of 77



AGENDA

• LG&E/KU Resource Plan – PSC Order
• IRP2023 Timeline

11/10/2023 www.KYMEA.org 12
Page 18 of 77



IRP2023 Decision Timeline

11/10/2023 13

Date Meeting Decision/Action

Aug 24  Regular Board Meeting  Capacity/Energy RFP Issued (Aug 25)

Sep 28  Regular Board Meeting  Board approves RICE E&C RFP (To be issued week of Oct 9)

Oct 9  Receive Results of RICE and Capacity/Energy RFPs
Oct 9 - Oct 13  IRP2023 Evaluation Period

Oct 19  Special Board Meeting  Present IRP2023/RFP Results

Oct 26 Regular Board Meeting If Board votes to advance the RICE Project forward
• Create RICE Project Participant Committee

Nov 15 Regular Board Meeting Select Investment Bank

Dec 6 Receive Results of RICE E&C RFP
Dec 6 - Dec 12 IRP2023 Evaluation Period

Dec 13 Regular Board Meeting Present IRP2023 Results

Jan 10 Special Board Meeting If Board selects RICE Project
• Authorize CEO signing of RICE and Engineering & Construction 

contracts post consultant due diligence review
• AR Project and Board votes to add RICE PPA to Schedule B 

after contracts are signed

Jan 25 Regular Board Meeting Authorize issuance of bonds to finance project

www.KYMEA.org

Preliminary – Subject to Change

Delayed pending more site information

Page 19 of 77



October 2023 Market Report
Rob Leesman

November 15, 2023
11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.6rg 1
KYMEA_Board_Presentation_October_2023_Market_Report_11-15-2023.pptx Page 20 of 77



https://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/temp-and-precip/us-maps/

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 2
Page 21 of 77

https://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/temp-and-precip/us-maps/


Degree Days

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 3
Page 22 of 77



AR Load October 2023

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 4
Page 23 of 77



Non-AR Load October 2023

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 5
Page 24 of 77



October 2023 Snapshot

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 6

Member

Budget 
Energy 
(MWh)

Actual 
Energy 
(MWh)

Actual vs. 
Budget 
Energy

Budget 
NCP 
(MW)

Actual 
NCP 
(MW)

Actual 
vs. 

Budget 
NCP Timestamp (HE EST)

Barbourville 6,243       5,748       92% 14.20 13.74 97% 10/3/2023 4:00:00 PM
Bardwell 572          556          97% 1.42 1.43 101% 10/2/2023 5:00:00 PM
Benham 386          377          98% 1.12 0.97 87% 10/23/2023 8:00:00 AM
Berea 9,326       8,937       96% 19.91 19.15 96% 10/3/2023 5:00:00 PM
Corbin 6,005       5,371       89% 14.46 13.38 93% 10/3/2023 4:00:00 PM
Falmouth 1,288       1,214       94% 2.86 3.02 106% 10/3/2023 5:00:00 PM
Frankfort 51,919      49,458      95% 107.15 105.82 99% 10/3/2023 4:00:00 PM
Madisonville 23,971      19,843      83% 47.02 46.16 98% 10/2/2023 4:00:00 PM
Owensboro 63,555      58,993      93% 117.00 139.00 119%
Paris 4,189       3,584       86% 9.60 8.53 89% 10/3/2023 5:00:00 PM
Providence 2,105       1,968       94% 4.97 4.83 97% 10/3/2023 5:00:00 PM
AR 96,293      87,742      91% 201.68 196.91 98%
Non-AR 9,712       9,313       96% 21.03 20.12 96%
All 106,005    97,055      92% 222.70 217.04 97%
Total 169,560    156,048    92% 339.70 356.04 105%

Oct-23

Page 25 of 77



BREC PPA Load Capacity Factor FY 24

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 7
Page 26 of 77



BREC PPA PFR Capacity Factor FY 24

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 8
Page 27 of 77



BREC PPA Capacity Factor FY 24

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 9
Page 28 of 77



BREC Option Capacity Factor FY 24

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 10
Page 29 of 77



DEI PPA Load Capacity Factor FY 24

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 11
Page 30 of 77



DEI PPA PFR Capacity Factor FY 24

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 12
Page 31 of 77



DEI Capacity Factor FY 24

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 13
Page 32 of 77



PPS PPA Capacity Factor FY 24

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 14
Page 33 of 77



SEPA Capacity Factor FY 24

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 15
Page 34 of 77



Ashwood Capacity Factor FY 24

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 16
Page 35 of 77



KYMEA AR Energy Mix

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 17
Page 36 of 77



KYMEA AR Energy Mix FY 24

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 18
Page 37 of 77



Working Gas in Storage (10-27-23)

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 19
Page 38 of 77



Natural Gas Spot Prices

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 20
Page 39 of 77



Total Rig Count

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 21
Page 40 of 77



Indiana Hub ATC

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 22
Page 41 of 77



Texas Eastern Transmission East Louisiana Zone

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 23
Page 42 of 77



Texas Eastern Transmission East Louisiana Zone

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 24
Page 43 of 77



Historical Pricing

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 25
Page 44 of 77



Member Communications

11/15/2023 www.KYMEA.org 1

Michelle Hixon
November 15, 2023

KYMEA_Board_Presentation_November_2023_Member_Communications_11-15-2023.pptx Page 45 of 77



Dates to Remember

11/15/2023 www.KYMEA.org 2

December
12th at 2 PM AR Project Rates Workshop
13th at 8:30 AM BROC Meeting
14th at 10 AM Combined Mtg of the AR Project Committee 

and KYMEA Board of Directors
25th Merry Christmas!

January
24th at 2 PM AR Project Rates Workshop
25th at 10 AM Combined Mtg of the AR Project Committee 

and KYMEA Board of Directors

Page 46 of 77



Annual Report & 2024 Calendars

11/15/2023 www.KYMEA.org 3

2023 Annual Reports and 2024 Board and Committee calendars are 
available. Please send me an email if you would like copies mailed 

to your utility. You can also find them on BoardEffect and 
www.kymea.org. 

Page 47 of 77

http://www.kymea.org/


Adding KYMEA’s meetings to Outlook

11/15/2023 www.KYMEA.org 4

- Log into BoardEffect https://kymea.boardeffect.com/
- Click “Export” and “Subscribe”

Step 1

- Copy the link”

Step 2

Page 48 of 77

https://kymea.boardeffect.com/


Adding KYMEA’s meetings to Outlook

11/15/2023 www.KYMEA.org 5

- Open Outlook
- right click on “My Calendars”
- “Add Calendar”
- “From Internet”

Step 3

- Paste the link here from step 2

Step 4

Page 49 of 77



Adding KYMEA’s meetings to Outlook

11/15/2023 www.KYMEA.org 6

- You will see the calendar here. 
Calendar updates will happen 
automatically.

Page 50 of 77



11/15/2023 www.KYMEA.org 7
Page 51 of 77



FY2025 Budget and Rates 
Schedule

Doug Buresh
November 14, 2023

11/8/2023 www.KYMEA.org 1
KYMEA_Board_Presentation_November_2023_Budget_Rates_11-14-2023.pptx Page 52 of 77



FY2025 Budget and Rates

11/8/2023 www.KYMEA.org 2

Oct                              Nov                              Dec                              Jan

2023 2024

Staff
- Update Operating and
   Capital Budget
- Prepare FY2024 AR Rate
  Design

Budget Committee
- Staff presents Operating
  and Capital Budget for
  Budget Committee
  Approval (11/14/2023)

Staff
- Update FY2024 AR Rate
  Design

AR Project Workshop
 - Staff presents updated AR
 Rates and Service Rates
   (12/12/2023)

Board
- Staff/Budget Committee
  presents Operating and
  Capital Budget to Board
  (11/15/2023)

Board
 - Staff/AR Project
   Committee presents AR
   Rates and Service Rates
   (12/13/2023)

Board (Budget Action)
- Operating and Capital
   Budget Approval
   (12/13/2023)

AR Project Committee
- AR Rate and Service
  Rates Approval
  (1/24/2024)

Board (Rate Action)
- AR Rate and Service Rates
  Approval (1/25/2024)

Staff
- Prepare Initial Operating
   and Capital Budget

Budget Committee
- Staff presents Initial
  Operating and Capital
  Budget for Budget
  Committee (10/25/2023)

Staff
- Update FY2024 AR Rate
  Design

AR Project Workshop
 - Staff presents AR Rates
   and Service Rates
    (11/14/2023)

Page 53 of 77



 

1 
 

FY2025 Operation Budget  

 

100. Salaries, Benefits, Retirement, Accrued PTO 
Increase of $60,108 over FY2024:  Increase due to health insurance and 8% increase in salary 

and retirement contribution.  Salaries, medical, dental, vision, life, disability, FICA, Medicare, 

accrued vacation/personal leave, tuition. 

200. Legal Counsel 
No change from FY2024:  General legal support. 

300. Advisory Support 
Increase of $35,000 over FY2024:  Special Counsel and Advisory.  FERC and specialized legal 

support, transmission and communications support, and power supply advisory support.  

Advisory services in FY2025 in support of Agency’s 2025 portfolio changes. 

Page 54 of 77



 

2 
 

400. Office Space Lease & Costs 
Increase of $21,154 over FY2024:  Increase due to adjustment in office maintenance cost and 

lease extension. Lease, IT closet utilities, maintenance.  Contractual lease payment and 

expenses.  

500. Member Services, Board Meetings, Training 
Unchanged from FY2024:  Member meetings including annual meeting, portal design, member 

services travel.  Training and fees to APPA, TAPS, TVPPA, legislative, HR, member 

communications, financial, software classes, certifications, etc.   

600. Auto Expense 
Unchanged from FY2024:  CEO vehicle fuel, maintenance, insurance, taxes, staff vehicle mileage. 

700. IT/AV/Software/Dynamic Schedule/Office Supplies 
Increase of $29,120 over FY2024:  Increase due to SEDC (Meridian), IT support for cybersecurity, 

redundancy, ELAN, and dynamic scheduling internet access. Phones, copier, office supplies, IT 

service contract, internet, software subscriptions. 

800. Insurance 
Decrease of $7,686 from FY2024 due:  Decrease resulting from active policy management and 

bidding.  Property and professional liability. 

900. Advertising & Marketing 
Unchanged from FY2024:  Newsletters, website support, branding. 

1000. Audit & Annual Report 
Unchanged from FY2024:  Audit and annual report production and printing. 

1100. Rating Agency 
Increase of $45,000 from FY2024:  Increase due to addition of Moody’s Rating Agency.  Moody’s 

and Fitch Rating Agency ratings. 

1200. Associations and Lobbyist 
Decrease of $2,450 under FY2024:  APPA and KYMEA Lobbyists. 

1300. Project Planning 
Unchanged from FY2024:  Transmission system impact studies and strategic planning.  

1400. Energy Services Partner 
Unchanged from FY2024:  ESP services, model runs, trading accounts, trading fees and services, 

back-up server fee. 

1500. MAC Software, Data, Training, and Subscriptions 
Unchanged from FY2024:  Optimization model, data and market intelligence, load forecasting, 

RTO membership, training 

Page 55 of 77



 

3 
 

1600. MDMS/Communications/Meters 
Unchanged from FY2024:  MDMS license and maintenance, communications expense, meter 

testing, dynamic scheduling (engineering support, software, OATIWeb, LG&E/KU, TVA, and 

MISO).  

 

SERVICE FEES 
 Membership Fee – 0.0142¢ per kWh. 

 Dispatch Service Fee – 0.0555¢ per kWh.  (service discontinued) 

 Transmission Service Fee – 0.0531¢ per kWh.  (service discontinued) 

 Energy Carrying Charge – 0.0456¢ per kWh.  (service discontinued) 

 Resource Planning Service Fee – 0.0383¢ per kWh.  (service discontinued) 

 

NET OPERATING BUDGET 
Increase of $180,246 (4.4%) over FY2024. 

 

CAPITAL BUDGET 
$250,000.  No change from FY2024 Budget.  Supports MAC and office hardware needs, spare 

equipment, redundancy, dynamic scheduling hardware, software, and communications 

requirements, Falmouth Transmission, Projects. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Document: V:\Budget\FY2025\FY2025_Operating_Budget_Board_11-14-2023.docx 

Spreadsheet: V:\Budget\FY2025\KYMEA_Income_Statement_FY25_Budget_11-14-2023.xlsx 

Page 56 of 77



Winter Preparedness
Rob Leesman

November 15, 2023
11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 1
KYMEA_Board_Presentation_Winter_Preparedness_11-15-2023.pptx Page 57 of 77



Winter 2024 Preparedness

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 2

Purpose:  To procure enough capacity/reserves and firm transmission to 
cover load during summer peaking events

What/Ifs:  In the event that loads were unable to be adequately supplied then 
Energy Emergency Alerts (EEA) would be enacted

 EEA 1 – All available generation resources in use
 EEA 2 – Load management procedures in effect, Capacity Benefit 
        Margin (CBM) can be called upon (requests due Mar. 1)
 EEA 3 – Firm load interruption is imminent or in progress

Page 58 of 77



Winter 2024 Outlook

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 3

https://www.cpc.ncep.noaa.gov/products/predictions/long_range/seasonal.php?lead=4

Page 59 of 77



December 2023 Outlook

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 4

https://weather.com/safety/winter/news/2023-10-13-winter-temperature-outlook-forecast-united-states-el-nino

Page 60 of 77



January 2024 Outlook

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 5
Page 61 of 77



February 2024 Outlook

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 6
Page 62 of 77



NERC Winter Outlook

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 7
Page 63 of 77



Winter 24’ Capacity and Transmission Portfolio

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 8

KYMEA

177MW MISO PTP

EKPC_RESID_AGG

DEI PPA
60MW

SEPA 
32MW

MISO Int

PJM Int

TVA Int

32MW TVA PTP

60MW NITS

11MW NITS

PPS 
90MW

Paris 
11MW

BREC PPA 
100MW

BREC Econ 
100MW

177MW NITS

123MW CBM

Page 64 of 77



Winter Capacity and Transmission Portfolio

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 9

Resource Notes
Volume 
(MW)

Firm 
Transmission 

(MW)
BREC PPA slice of system 100 100
DEI PPA slice of system 60 60
PPS internal 60 60
BREC Option 100 17
Paris internal 11 11
SEPA 32 32
CBM notified in June 2023 123 0

Page 65 of 77



Winter Forecast

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 10

Month

Budget 
Peak 
Load 

(MW)

All-Time 
Peak 
Load 

(MW)

Firm 
Supply 

Capacity 
(MW) Year

Dec-23 214          246          280          2022
Jan-24 226          259          280          2014
Feb-24 211          266          280          2015

Page 66 of 77



Winter Capacity and Transmission Portfolio

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 11

1. LG&E
a) Cost-based tariff
b) Requires network transmission

2. MISO
a) Requires point to point transmission
b) Requires network transmission

3. PJM
a) Requires point to point transmission
b) Requires network transmission

4. TVA
a) Requires delivery to the LGE/TVA Interface
b) Requires network transmission

Page 67 of 77



No Contingency

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 12
Page 68 of 77



MISO Contingency

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 13
Page 69 of 77



PPS Contingency

11/9/2023 www.KYMEA.org 14
Page 70 of 77



KYMEA 3-Year 
Resource/Reliability Plan
and Transmission Needs

November 15, 2023

11/15/2023 1
KYMEA_Transmission_Needs_11-15-2023.pptx Page 71 of 77



NERC Winter Reliability Assessment

11/15/2023 www.KYMEA.org 2
Page 72 of 77



Prudent Reliability Planning
Su

m
m

er
W

in
te

r

311/15/2023

RFP PPA – 55MW
Ashwood delay security

RICE
Oct ‘26

Page 73 of 77



Transmission Service Request (TSR)

11/15/2023 www.KYMEA.org 4

Cayuga

Gibson

Wilson

35 MW
AMP Berea expires 

4/30/2024

3 MW
AMP Benham expires 

5/31/2024

CURRENT 
TRANSMISSION

Page 74 of 77



3-Year Resource Plan – Transmission

11/15/2023 www.KYMEA.org 5

TBD RFP PPA
55 MW

Gibson

Page 75 of 77



Transmission Service Action

11/15/2023 www.KYMEA.org 6

Upcoming Action at Next Board Meeting (December)

AR Project Committee Requested Action

• Staff recommends the AR Project Committee provides the following 
recommendations to the KYMEA Board:

1. Authorize the KYMEA CEO to provide written notice to Berea 
terminating the Transmission Service Agreement effective May 1, 
2024 (agreement requires 30-day notice)

2. Benham indicated their intent to join the AR Project on June 1, 
2024. In the event Benham does not join the AR Project, authorize 
the KYMEA CEO to provide written notice to Benham terminating 
the Transmission Service Agreement effective January 1, 2025 
(agreement requires 1-year notice)

Page 76 of 77



Closed Session Authorization for November 15, 2023 KYMEA Board Meeting 

 

Approval to enter into Closed Session pursuant to KRS 61.810(1)(c), KRS 66.810(1)(g) and 

KRS 61.878(1)(c) for the purpose of: 

(i) discussing proposed, potential or pending litigation relating to KYMEA and its 

members relating to transmission and power supply issues; and 

(ii) presenting and discussing a specific proposal between the agency and a business 

entity, including but not limited to a specific assets and siting. 

 

KRS 61.810(1)(c) allows for closed session for the purpose of discussing proposed, potential and 

pending litigation relating to the agency.  

 

KRS 61.810(1)(g) allows for closed session relating to discussions concerning a specific proposal 

between a public agency and a representative of a business entity, which, if discuss in open session, 

would jeopardize the siting, retention, expansion, or upgrading of the business.  

KRS 61.878(1)(c) allow for closed session where discussions regarding records or information 

disclosed to the agency or required to be disclosed to the agency as confidential or proprietary 

would, if disclosed by the agency, provide an unfair advantage to competitors of the entity 

disclosing such information. 

Page 77 of 77


	Cover Page
	Agenda
	Meeting Opening
	Attendance
	Call to Order
	Guest Introductions

	Previous Meeting Minutes of the KYMEA Board of Directors
	Oct 26, 2023 Board Meeting Minutes v2.pdf

	Financial Reports
	Committee Reports
	Budget Committee Report
	AR Project Committee Report

	Administration Reports
	CEO 
	KYMEA_Board_Presentation_November_2023_CEO_11-15-2023.pdf

	Market Report
	KYMEA_Board_Presentation_October_2023_Market_Report_11-15-2023 r1.pdf

	Member Communications
	KYMEA_Board_Presentation_November_2023_Member_Communications_11-15-2023.pdf


	Discussion Topics 
	FY 2024 Budget & Rates Timeline
	KYMEA_Board_Presentation_November_2023_Budget_Rates_11-14-2023.pdf

	FY2025 Operating Budget
	FY2025_Operating_Budget_Board_11-14-2023.pdf

	Winter Preparation
	KYMEA_Board_Presentation_Winter_Preparedness_11-15-2022 r1.pdf

	Benham & Berea Transmission Agreements
	KYMEA_Transmission_Needs_11-15-2023.pdf


	Action Items
	Investment Bank Selection

	Public Comments
	Upcoming Meetings and Other Business
	Closed Session
	Resolution for Closed Session - 11-15-23.docx

	Action Expected Related to Matters Discussed in Closed Session
	Adjournment 

